ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
February 7, 2008
3:04 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Represent ati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve Wes Kel |l er

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Berta Gardner

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 13
Establishing and relating to the Education Funding District Cost
Fact or Commi ssi on.

- MOVED CSHCR 13(HES) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 319
"An Act relating to the practice of dentistry and to dental
assistants.”

- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HCR 13

SHORT TI TLE: EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG COST FACTOR COVM SSI ON

SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) HAWKER BY REQUEST OF JT LEG
EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG TASK FORCE

01/ 15/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H) HES
02/ 07/ 08 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106

Bl LL: HB 319
SHORT TITLE: DENTI STS & DENTAL ASSI STANTS
SPONSOR('s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) RAMRAS

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -1- February 7, 2008



01/ 15/ 08 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 15/ 08 (H) HES, L&C
02/ 07/ 08 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVKER

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: I ntroduced HCR 13, as the prime sponsor.

DAVE JONES, Assistant Superintendant

Kenai Peni nsul a Borough School District

Sol dot na, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HCR 13.

PATTY KRUEGER, Staff

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced HB 319 on behalf of
Represent ati ve Ranras, sponsor.

JANE PI ERSON, Staff

to Representative Jay Ranras

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered a question during the hearing on
HB 319.

DAVID L. EICHLER, D.D.S.; President

Al aska Board of Dental Exam ners

North Pol e, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
3109.

DAVID LOGAN, D.D.S.; Legislative Liaison

Al aska Dental Society

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
3109.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAI R PEGGY WLSON call ed the House Health, Education and Socia
Services Standing Conmittee neeting to order at 3:04:01 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 2- February 7, 2008



Representatives WIson, Roses, Seaton, and Gardner were present
at the call to order. Representatives Ci ssna, Fairclough, and
Keller arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HCR 13- EDUCATI ON FUNDI NG COST FACTOR COWM SSI ON

3:05:27 PM

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESCLUTI ON NO. 13, Establishing and relating to
t he Education Funding District Cost Factor Conmm ssion.

3:05:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M KE HAVWKER, Al aska State Legislature, introduced
HCR 13 as the prine sponsor. Representative Hawker inforned the
commttee that HCR 13 was one of the recomrendati ons nade by the
Joint Legislative Education Funding Task Force [(JLEFTF)] and
addresses the issue of the cost differential factor in the
student funding forrmula for education. This factor is the
multiplier that 1is wused to determne education funding,
recogni zing that education costs nore in rural areas than in
Anchor age. The amount of this factor has been studied by the
American Institute of Research (AIR) and the University of
Al aska's Institute of Social and Economc Research (ISER)

still, it remains an issue of controversy. The JLEFTF
recoomended that the legislature be set on the task of
devel opi ng a net hodol ogy and cal cul ation of the cost deferenti al
factor that satisfies a sufficient nunber of |egislators. House
Concurrent Resolution 13 creates the Education Funding D strict
Cost Factor Comm ssion, conprised nostly of legislators, to be
charged wth the task of examning school district cost
differentials and determining a formula to adequately and
equitably fund education throughout Al aska, and reporting to the
full | egi sl ative body prior to Sept enber 30, 20009.
Representative Hawker explained that there is an alternate
proposal that creates a gubernatorial task force conprised of

menbers of the conmunity; however, he opined that the
| egislature is responsible for funding the educational system
for the state, thus the conmission should consist of

| egi sl ators.
3:12:18 PM
CHAIR WLSON stated that the JLEFTF nmade many conprom ses during

the process of its deliberations. She asked Representative
Hawker to di scuss those conprom ses.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 3- February 7, 2008



3:13:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER rel ated that the work on the district cost
factors, by the commssion created by HCR 13, would have a
scientific and econom c focus, as opposed to the policy issues
that were a priority of the JLEFTF. The joint, bi-partisan,
| egislative approach is intentionally neant to provide an
academ c process to the cost factor. He pointed out that
|atitude and freedom are built into the legislation to allow for
a process that is scientifically and econom cally valid.

3:15:29 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH inquired whether the joint conmttee,
when looking at policy such as mllage rates and matching
contributions, <considered the declining enrollnments of sone
Al aska school s. She asked whether the sponsor regards the
identification of "policy points" to be an inportant addition to
this bill.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER acknowl edged that policy matters are
relevant to the discussion; however, this Ilegislation was
specifically targeted to the one task of quantifying differences
in cost, in the different geographic |ocations, of conducting
simlar activities. The discussion of the proper way to fund
schools is another question, perhaps to be included in the
proposal to create a House Standing Commttee on Educati on.

3:17: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER pointed out that the resolution calls for
the president of the Senate and the speaker of the House to
appoint the chair and vice chair of the conm ssion. He asked
about the wi sdom of that approach.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that this |anguage was cloned
from the legislation that created the JLEFTF, and that he was
confortable, but not adamant, with this procedure.

3:19: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER then asked whether experts on this issue
woul d be part of the task force.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER explained that this is a legislative
process in order to fulfill +the constitutional mandate to

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 4- February 7, 2008



provide the system of schools for the state. | f needed, an
additional fiscal note could be attached to provide funding for
pr of essi onal resources.

3:20: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON agreed that the eleven nenbers of the
comm ssion should set up the paraneters. He noted that the
resolution lacks the authority to wite a Request for Proposal
(RFP) to fund the devel opnent of the cost factor nodel.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER support ed Representati ve Seaton' s
suggesti on. Additionally, the commttee nmay want to consider
elimnating the term nation date of the comm ssion, he renarked.

3:22:16 PM

CHAIR WLSON pointed out that the fiscal note attached is for
$30, 000.

3:22:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER asked for the purpose of an ongoing
commi ssi on once a functional nodel was devel oped.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said that he sinply offered the change for
the commttee' s consideration.

3:23: 04 PM

CHAIR WLSON stated that the Departnent of Education and Early
Devel opnent (EED) is mandated to check the cost factor every two
years. She noted that this bill will be going to the finance
commttee with the attachnent of the fiscal note.

3:23:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER opi ned that the fiscal note will force the
bill through the Finance Commtt ee.

3:24:00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA encouraged the sponsor to specify the
inclusion of no less than two mnority nenbers of each body to
t he comm ssi on.

3:25: 06 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 5- February 7, 2008



CHAIR W LSON asked whether there were mnority nenbers on the
JLEFTF.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER said yes. He recalled that a very
i nportant menber of the mnority was appointed to the JLEFTF and
expressed his trust in the fairness of the presiding officers to
make the appoint nents. He stated the inportance of nmaintaining
the public perception of bipartisanship.

3:26:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noticed that on page 1, line 16, HCR 13
directs that the conmmssion is established for the purpose of

exam ning school district cost differentials. He opined that
this long standing problem would need to be studied at the
community level and the commssion should not be limted to

| ooki ng at the fornul a.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER responded that the intent of t he
resolution is specifically limted to examning the existing
formulas and cost differentials. This specific problem has
caused the legislature to be in gridlock for nmany years.

3:28:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES recalled that this resolve was the sole
unani nous point agreed upon by nenbers of the JLEFTF, on which
he served. He stated that the establishment of a comrmittee to
develop a process to arrive at valid differentials for this
purpose is a priority.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER agreed that the inportance of this task
was a universal consideration

3:30:51 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH voi ced her confi dence t hat
bi parti sanship would occur in the appointnents to the
comi ssi on.
3:31: 44 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON surm sed that this issue is conprehensive

enough that a diverse group wll be appointed, or its
recommendati ons would fail.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 6- February 7, 2008



3:32: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA agreed that the current political
at nrosphere is of a reasonable nature. However, her experience
has been that inequities can occur. She offered Amendnent 1,
such that each [body] would provide no |less than two nenbers of
the mnority caucus.

3:34:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed. He explained that, if there is
a small majority, the amendment woul d nandate a di sproportionate
nunber of mnority nmenbers.

3:35:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated her opposition to the anendnent
and pointed out the geographic inbalance that could occur.

3. 36: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA w thdrew Anmendnent 1, and offered
Amendrment 2 such that no less than one mnority nenber is
appoi nted by the president of the Senate and the speaker of the
House.

3:38: 00 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whet her Anendnment 2 was a conceptual
anendnent .

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA i ndi cated that it was.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON renoved hi s objection.

3:38: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER obj ect ed. She acknow edged
Representative Cissna's concern, but cautioned that t he
amendnment introduces an elenent of partisanship into the

resol uti on.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA affirmed that the anendnent iIs a
reasonabl e protection agai nst partisanship.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -7- February 7, 2008



3:41: 06 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives Keller, Seaton, and
Cissna voted in favor of Amendnent 2. Represent ati ves Gardner,
Faircl ough, Roses, and WIson voted against it. Ther ef or e,
Amrendnent 2 failed by a vote of 3 to 4.

3:41: 31 PM

DAVE JONES, Assistant Superintendant, Kenai Peninsula Borough
School District, said that he supports the formation of a body
to look at the cost differentials. M. Jones agreed that, even
with changes to the foundation fornula, l|egitinmte geographic
cost differentials are needed to apply to that formula for
equi tabl e funding across the state. He cited that the success
of the JLEFTF supports the creation of the commssion in a
simlar format, and the conm ssion may achieve the solution that
has been searched for for ten years. He opined that
Represent ati ve Hawker shoul d be appointed to the comm ssion.

3:44:09 PM

CHAI R W LSON cl osed public testinony.

3:44:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated her support for the concept of
the failed Amendnent 2; however, she expressed her belief that
this is a nonpartisan resol ution.

3:44: 57 PM

CHAIR WLSON expressed her concern that the amendnent could be
m si nt er pr et ed.

3:45:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER of fered Amendnment 3, such that on page 2,
line 7, following the nunber “(3)”, the Ilanguage "one" is
replaced with "five", and the follow ng | anguage is added: "to

include a certified public accountant, a data analyst, and a
menber of the state school board”.

3:46: 22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH obj ect ed.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 8- February 7, 2008



3:46:31 PM
CHAI R W LSON asked how many were on the JLEFTF this sumrer.
3:46:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER answered el even nenbers with one appointed
by the governor.

CHAIR WLSON concluded that this anmendnment would nake 15
menbers.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER added that the anendnent would al so need
to change the total nunber of nenbers.

3:47: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH wi t hdr ew her obj ecti on.
3:47:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GARDNER obj ected and asked whether the additions
were to conport with SB 219.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER responded that he added the state schoo
board nenber.

3:47: 38 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH expressed her concern that adding four
addi ti onal people could bring in [Iobbying for personal
interests. She remnded the committee that the fiscal note
provi des for the necessary expert advice, and cautioned agai nst
addi ng the perception of undue influence.

3:49: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON supported the concept that the problem has
been getting the legislature to address the issue, and the
cormittee should be a legislative task force wth questions
answered by experts. He indicated his opposition to the
amendnent .

3:50: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES stated his opposition to the anmendnent
because it msrepresents what this conmttee is to do. The

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 9- February 7, 2008



legislators are to gather and discuss the paraneters and
gui delines for an RFP or a request for data anal ysis.

3:51:13 PM

CHAIR WLSON commented that the fiscal note is presently
dedi cated for travel

3:51: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  FAIRCLOUGH pointed out that there was a
duplication of the fiscal note.

3:52:21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER w thdrew Anendnment 3, and of fered
Amendnent 4, as foll ows:

Page 1, line 16,
Del ete "school district”
I nsert "community."

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER stated that this small change will broaden
the product of the comm ssion. He stressed the value of
breaki ng down the cost studies, not by school district, but by
areas within a school district.

3:53:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON obj ect ed.

3:53:39 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER acknowl edged that this valid point was
di scussed by the JLEFTF with the best exanple being the Kena

Peni nsul a Borough School D strict. This school district is
conposed of urban schools and small, very renote, rural schools
with very high cost considerations. He opined that "school
district cost differentials" is a term out of statute and
presuned the commttee will address the idea of the parsing of
schools wthin a district. In fact, there is a large
di screpancy even wthin the Anchorage School District.

Represent ati ve Hawker enphasized that this is another reason to
go beyond conventional wisdomin this process.

3:56: 09 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -10- February 7, 2008



CHAIR WLSON agreed and cited other conmunities that are
af f ect ed.

3:56:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stressed that the funding fornula works
t hrough school districts and the problem of transportation costs
arises wthin schools districts, not necessarily between
comruni ti es. A funding formula nust be based on a school
district basis and then adjusted, through the nodel, by the
diversity of the school district. He enphasi zed that the basis
of the funding fornmula and the cost differential nust match.

3:59: 03 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES supported the community cost idea because
cost differentials can be utilized in other areas, for exanple,
in health and social services. |In fact, area cost differentials
must be researched by scrutinizing each individual community
Wi thin school districts.

4:00:13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH concurred. She explained that the
amendnent would create a policy change that nay cause nore
problenms than it sol ves. Policy issues should be set aside for
t he purpose of the m ssion of this resolution.

4:01:19 PM

A roll call vote was taken. Representative Keller voted in
favor of  Anmendnent 4. Representatives Seaton, Ci ssna,
Faircl ough, Roses, and WIson voted against it. Ther ef or e,

Amrendnent 4 failed by a vote of 1-5.
4:02: 02 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of fered Amendnment 5, as foll ows:
Page 2, line 18;
Del ete "Decenber 31, 2010"
Insert "April 1, 2011"
4:02:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH obj ect ed.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -11- February 7, 2008



4:02:20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that 2010 is an election year
and he stated the possible necessity to re-appoint the entire
commi Sssi on.

4:03:18 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH wi t hdrew her objection.

4:03: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER obj ect ed. He wurged the comittee to
discuss the inclusion of public coment to the report of
findings. He then renoved his objection.

4:04: 07 PM

CHAIR WLSON objected for discussion. She suggested the
addition of a sunset clause and then renoved her objection.

4:04: 33 PM

There being no further objection, Arendnent 5 was adopt ed.
4:04:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON of fered conceptual Anmendnent 6, such that
on page 2, line 3, the following |anguage would be added:
"FURTHER RESOLVED that the conmi ssion may solicit a RFP through
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit to conduct a study based on the
nodel ".

4. 05: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH obj ect ed.

4:05: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON explained that the purpose of the
anendnent was to provide a nethod to conduct the study and
i npl enent the nodel .

4:06: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER clarified that the work product is that
the comm ssion submts a report of its findings and proposed

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -12- February 7, 2008



| egi sl ative changes to the |egislature. He cautioned that this
is not be assigned to Legislative Budget and Audit.
Representative Hawker questioned whether this is the type of
activity for the funding sources for external resources. He
conmtted to addressing this issue, perhaps through the
expansion of the fiscal note, during hearings before the House
Fi nance Standing Comm ttee.

4:08: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON agreed that the issue can be addressed
later and that Representative Hawker can explore the nost
efficient mechanism to get the study conducted based on the
nodel . He further suggested that the study could be conducted
after the report is presented and the paraneters have been
approved by the | egislature.

4:09:58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER i ndicated that this point illustrates why
the resolution gives the commssion latitude to carry the
process forward. He opined that if the comm ssion needs

additional resources to conplete its task, the funding would
come fromthe legislature's budget that is already appropriated,
and additional authority would not be needed.

4:11:20 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether the comm ssion would be charged with
creating a nodel that can be updated efficiently each year.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER confirmed that the charge is to create a
valid and durable nodel that can be accurately updated. He
cited the Medicaid cost projection nodel format as an exanple
programthat is used annually to update cost projections.

4:13:22 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked whether the report that is presented
to the legislature would be of a nodel wth subsequent
aut hori zation for a study, or, would the conmm ssion al so conduct
the study and present the cal cul ated cost differentials.

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER answered that the clear deliverable is the

report of its findings. The commttee ought to report a
durabl e nodel; however, it may not be possible. He stressed
that the resolution is deficient in that it does not

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -13- February 7, 2008



specifically provi de t hat t he comittee woul d engage
prof essi onal resources to support its efforts.

4:15: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON re-stated his question. He then remarked:
| want to figure out what our expectation is or if we
are actually having them construct the nodel, and, and

then that's going to be the report and then the
| egislature's going to fund the conducting the study

to, to fill out that nodel. ... Right now, I'm a
little confused because mybe we don't have the
specificity. | was adding in the portion in this
anmendnent, and |'m speaking to the anendnent that,
yes, you have the authority to go do the study, or
conduct the study, or get the RFP, ... and then |
backed up and |I'm not sure that that ... is what the
report was really requesting or was ... the report was
requesting |looking at the paraneters and devel oping a
nodel. ... I'mat a |oss.
4:17: 14 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES expressed his understanding that the charge
woul d be for the commi ssion to provide an end product that would
be an area cost differential, without an internedi ate step. He
cautioned that |egislative approval of the paraneters for the
study will slow the process by years.

4:18: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER of fered a hypothetical exanple of how the
commttee would operate. First, there nust be a decision of how
to solve the problem This may include advice from consultants,
or other procedures. The desired outconme would be the creation
of a working nodel that would provide the nunbers for
presentation to the legislature. Finally, the legislature would
have the larger discussion regarding the annual or bi-annual
revi ew of the nunbers.

4:21:14 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether the JLEFTF decided that it wanted a
nmodel , or new nunbers.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -14- February 7, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER opined that it wanted an analysis
mechani sm that |legislators could agree would produce new and
accurate nunbers.

4:21:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES clarified that the task force was | ooking
for not necessarily new, but accurate, nunbers.

4:22:20 PM

CHAIR WLSON recalled that, during her tenure in the
| egi sl ature, there have been three studies, and each tinme the
validity of the results was questioned.

4:23: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE HAWKER stated that the effort is to develop a
mechanism in an open process, that results in a fair and
appropriate cal cul ati on.

4:23:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON wi t hdrew Anmendnent 6, and said that he
woul d | eave the issue to the sponsor to address.

4:24:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked for confirmation from the
sponsor that the $30,000 provided in the fiscal note is enough
funding for an econom st to be made available to the comm ssion.

REPRESENTATI VE HAVWKER stated his intent to raise the issue with
Legi sl ative Legal and with the Finance Commttee staff
i mredi ately.

4:26:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES noved to report HCR 13, as anended, out of
committee with individual recomendations and the acconpanying
fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHCR 13(HES) was
reported out of the House Health, Education and Social Services
St andi ng Comm ttee.

HB 319- DENTI STS & DENTAL ASSI STANTS

4:27:14 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 15- February 7, 2008



CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 319, "An Act relating to the practice of
dentistry and to dental assistants."”

4:27:09 PM
PATTY KRUEGER, Staff to Representative Jay Ranras, Al aska State
Legi slature, introduced HB 319 on behalf of Representative
Ranras, sponsor. She read from the following prepared
st at enent :
Oral health plays a key role in overall health
unfortunately not all Alaskan's enjoy good dental
health due to geographical barriers, cost of dental
care and limtations on dental personnel. House Bi l

319 follows the provisions already in place in 36
other states allowing for expanded duties of dental
assistants thereby inproving access to dental care and
reduci ng costs for dental care. Wth expanded duti es,
dental assistants can help community health centers
and traveling dental teans provide greater access to
care and nore cost effective care. This bil

specifically will allow certified dental assistants to
place "fillings" into a cavity prepared by a licensed
dentist and allows a certified dental assistant to do
coronal polishing of the teeth. House Bill 319 is
beneficial to the citizens of Alaska by inproving
access to care while still naintaining the oversight
to ensure safety and quality of care. This bill is
supported by the Al aska Dental Society, Al aska Board
of Dental Exam ners, Alaska Dental Qutreach Consortium
and the Al aska Native Tribal Health Consortium House

Bill 319 neets the goals of the prelimnary report for
the CGovernor's Health Care Strategies Pl anni ng
Counci | .

4:29: 44 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  FAI RCLOUGH asked for the source of t he
definitions that are found on page 5, line 5 to 15, of the bill.

JANE PIERSON, Staff to Representative Jay Ranras, Alaska State
Legislature, informed the conmttee that the definitions in the
bill were provided by the Al aska Dental Society, Inc.

4:30: 44 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 16- February 7, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH further asked for confirmation that
the definitions are consistent wth standard dental procedures.

4:31:56 PM
DAVID L. EICHLER, D.D.S.; President, A aska Board of Dental

Exam ners, affirmed that the definitions are standard in the
dental industry.

4:32: 07 PM

DAVID LOGAN, D.D.S.; Legislative Liaison, Al aska Dental Society,
agreed with Dr. Eichler. He added that the definitions for
supervision are defined elsewhere in the statute; in fact, the
bill creates a new class of supervised entity wth the dental
assi stant. Previously, dental assistants have been a non

regul ated entity.
4:33: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH then asked whether these definitions
are accepted nationally, or just in Al aska.

DR. EICHLER explained that the tw definitions related to
supervision would be specific with the state of Al aska statute

and regul ation. The definitions of "calculus" and "coronal
polishing" neet the standards of clinical dental practice, and
the scope of practice of the "dental assistant"” is defined by

statute in individual states.

4:34. 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON assunmed that the bill creates a nore
limted scope for a dental assistant when conpared to the
responsibilities of a physician's assistant. For exanmple, the

only tine that the dental assistant can perform these procedures
is when the dentist is present in the facility.

DR. LOGAN said that is correct. A dental assistant can only work
in the presence of the dentist, wunder direct or indirect
supervi si on

4:35: 24 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -17- February 7, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether a local dental assistant
would be allowed to correct the polishing after a traveling
dentist has left the comunity.

DR. LOGAN explained that coronal polishing has to do wth
cleaning the teeth, not the adjustment of fillings. He stressed
that a dental assistant cannot make any adjustnents to a tooth
with a dentist present.

4:36:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  FAI RCLOUGH asked about the repeal of AS
08.32.110(d) that allows dental assistants to apply topical
preventive agents and seal ants.

DR. LOGAN explained that the provision cited by Representative
Faircl ough was defined under the hygiene statutes and this
authority is now found in the bill on page 4, line 21.

4:37:56 PM

CHAIR W LSON asked whether there is a national board or agency
that certifies dental assistants.

DR EICHLER said yes. He added that national standards are not
a part of the regulatory requirenments in Alaska. In answer to a
guestion, he further explained that it is difficult to obtain
dental office personnel in Alaska, and many are trained on the
job by the denti st.

4:39:12 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether there would be an objection to
requiring certification for dental assistants who wll Dbe
perform ng the expanded duti es.

DR LOGAN responded that there is not a national certification
process for dental health care providers; however, each state is
allowed to credential to their own statute. He said he was not
aware of any state that required certification from a nationa
board for all assistants.

DR. ElI CHLER concurr ed.

4:40: 55 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 18- February 7, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whet her dent al assistants are
required to be licensed.

DR. ElI CHLER i ndi cat ed no.
4:41: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH referred to page 4, line 23, and asked
for further clarification of "other dental operations and
services except as provided in AS 08.32.110(c) and this
chapter."”

DR EICHLER stated that AS 08.32.110(c) is an exception to the
del egation powers that could be delegated to a hygienist. These
same exceptions would apply to a dental assistant, also.
Paragraph (3) of the bill allows the delegation of services,
except for those previously cited.

4:43: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH pointed out that one of the other
services delegated to a hygienist is the admnistration of a
| ocal anesthetic, and the bill would also apply this exception
to dental assistants.

DR. ElI CHLER di sagr eed.
4:43: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH further asked whether this procedure
is allowed under paragraph (c).

DR. EICHLER clarified that a dental hygienist is allowed to
adm nister a local anesthetic with a separate certification. He
stated that there is no provision in this bill to allow that
certification for dental assistants.

4:45: 04 PM

CHAI R W LSON observed that there is time to clear this up before
the bill is nmoved fromconmttee.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON referred to page 4, line [25], [sub]
section (b), and asked for clarification of "direct supervision”
as conpared to "indirect supervision."

4:46: 24 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -19- February 7, 2008



DR. LOGAN explained that the current definition, under hygiene
statute, for "direct supervision" is that the dentist is in the
office, but not necessarily in the room and the dentist 1is
required to see the patient before and after the work is done.

4: 47: 17 PM
CHAI R W LSON asked for further clarification

DR. LOGAN responded that for "indirect supervision" the dentist
sees the patient beforehand, and is in the office, but not
necessarily in the room and does not see the patient for
eval uation after the work is done. For exanple, taking a x-ray
only requires "indirect supervision."

4:48:10 PM
CHAIR WLSON asked for a description of procedures that
assistants are allowed to do with both "direct" and "indirect"

supervi si on

DR. LOGAN stated that anything dental assistants do now, they

woul d still be able to do under "indirect supervision.” House
Bill 319 will allow, with "direct supervision," the packing and
carving of filling materials and coronal polishing.

4:49:10 PM

CHAI R W LSON expressed a concern about the lack of certification
of the assistants who are performng these expanded duties. A
certification procedure, independent of the dentists, would
assuage this concern.

DR. LOGAN enphasi zed that the function of the dental board is to
license dentists and hygienists. He opined that the dental
board is in the best qualified position to authorize individuals
to perform procedures.

4:50: 22 PM

CHAI R W LSON asked how t he dental board nmakes this concl usion

DR, EICHLER pointed out that the clause on page 3, line 24,
requires that the board wll issue a certificate to dental
assistants upon conpletion of a training program The

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 20- February 7, 2008



University of Alaska is willing to develop a training course to
ensure conpetency for the new duties.

4:51:22 PM

CHAIR WLSON surm sed that dental assistants would attend, and
pass, conpetency classes prior to applying for certification.

4:51:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that on page 3, line 2, the bill
establishes the dentist's responsibility to ensure that an
assistant under his or her supervision neets the mninmm
pr of essi onal standards.

DR. ElI CHLER concurr ed.
4:52: 43 PM

REPRESENTATI VE RCSES stated that the bill requires an assistant
to be conpetent, but does not require |icensing.

DR. EICHLER agreed that the bill requires a certification course
only.

4:53:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES asked whether a dental assistant would be
able to performthese functions without a certificate.

DR. ElI CHLER sai d no.

4:53:32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES recalled that Dr. Eichler had trained sone
assistants in his office. He asked whether they had
certificates.

DR EICHLER said they did not have certificates for these
functi ons. He added that the functions that a dental assistant
currently perforns have no certification.

4:53: 57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES confirned that <certifications wll be
required for the expanded functions.

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -21- February 7, 2008



DR. El CHLER concurr ed.
4:54: 09 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked for the consequences to the dentist of
al l owi ng procedures by a noncertified assistant.

DR. LOGAN recalled that there was a case about 10 years ago and
the dentist was fined $5,000. He noted that the maximum fine is
now $25, 000.

4:54:57 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH opined that this bill wuld create
addi tional incone for dentists.

4:55:21 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether the bill would allow dentists to

col |l ect nore noney.

DR. LOGAN said no. He explained that dental billing is by
procedure regardless of how nany providers are involved. He
added that the bill would allow a nore cost effective neans to
provi de treatment for children who qualify for Medicaid.

4:56:41 PM

DR. LOGAN, in answer to a question, estimated that there are a
very, very |low nunber of dentists who provide cleaning services
for Medicaid patients.

4:56: 57 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether the bill would allow denta

assistants to performthe cleanings that dentists and hygienists
now perform but at a | ower cost.

DR. LOGAN sai d yes.
4:57:16 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON observed that, in Honmer, there are no
dentists that provide Medicaid patients with service.

4:58: 08 PM

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE -22- February 7, 2008



CHAI R WLSON shared that Ketchikan kids fly to Juneau for denta
care.

4:58:28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH opined that the owner of a dental
office will have the opportunity to provide additional access to
care.

4:58: 59 PM

CHAIR WLSON asked whether the bill would be an incentive for
dentists to accept nore Medicaid patients.

DR. LOGAN expressed his hope that the bill would |ower one of
the barriers to Medicaid patients.

[ Al t hough not formally stated, HB 319 was hel d over.]
ADJ QURNVENT
There being no further business before the conmttee, the House

Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 4:59 p. m

HOUSE HES COWM TTEE - 23- February 7, 2008



